**CITY ATTORNEY OF SAN FRANCISCO** 

DAVID CHIU, CITY ATTORNEY

**≡** MENU

Q

HOME > GOOD GOVERNMENT > SUNSHINE > SUNSHINE ORDINANCE

# **Sunshine Ordinance**

San Francisco Administrative Code, Chapter 67, is also known as the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance of 1999.

- ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL
- ARTICLE II. PUBLIC ACCESS TO MEETINGS
- ARTICLE III. PUBLIC INFORMATION AND PUBLIC RECORDS
- ARTICLE IV. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION

### **ARTICLE I: IN GENERAL**

- Sec. 67.1. Findings and Purpose.
- Sec. 67.2. Citation.

#### Sec. 67.1. Findings and Purpose.

The Board of Supervisors and the People of the City and County of San Francisco find and declare:

(a) Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public.

(b) Elected officials, commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. The people do not cede to these

(c) A policy body may adopt reasonable regulations to ensure that the intent of subdivisions (a) and (b) are carried out, including, but not limited to, regulations limiting the total amount of time allocated for public testimony on particular issues and for each individual speaker. Each policy body shall adopt a rule providing that each person wishing to speak on an item before the body at a regular or special meeting shall be permitted to be heard once for up to three minutes. Time limits shall be applied uniformly to members of the public wishing to testify.

(d) A policy body shall not abridge or prohibit public criticism of the policy, procedures, programs or services of the City, or of any other aspect of its proposals or activities, or of the acts or omissions of the body, on the basis that the performance of one or more public employees is implicated, or on any basis other than reasonable time constraints adopted in regulations pursuant to Subdivision (c) of this Section.

(e) To facilitate public input, any agenda changes or continuances shall be announced by the presiding officer of a policy body at the beginning of a meeting, or as soon thereafter as the change or continuance becomes known to such presiding officer.

(Added by Ord. 265-93, App. 8/18/93; amended by Proposition G, 11/2/99)

# Sec. 67.16. Minutes.

The clerk or secretary of each board and commission enumerated in the Charter shall record the minutes for each regular and special meeting of the board or commission. The minutes shall state the time the meeting was called to order, the names of the members attending the meeting, the roll call vote on each matter considered at the meeting, the time the board or commission began and ended any closed session, the names of the members and the names, and titles where applicable, of any other persons attending any closed session, a list of those members of the public who spoke on each matter if the speakers identified themselves, whether such speakers supported or opposed the matter, a brief summary of each person's statement during the public comment period for each agenda item, and the time the meeting was adjourned. Any person speaking during a public comment period may supply a brief written summary of their comments which shall, if no more than 150 words, be included in the minutes.

The draft minutes of each meeting shall be available for inspection and copying upon request no later than ten working days after the meeting. The officially adopted minutes shall be available for inspection and copying upon request no later than ten working days after the meeting at which the minutes are adopted. Upon request, minutes required to be produced by this Section shall be made available in Braille or increased type size.

(Added by Ord. 265-93, App. 8/18/93; amended by Proposition G, 11/2/99)

## Sec. 67.17. Public Comment by Members of Policy Bodies.

Every member of a policy body retains the full constitutional rights of a citizen to comment publicly on the wisdom or propriety of government actions, including those of the policy body of which he or she is a member. Policy bodies shall not sanction, reprove or deprive members of their rights as elected or appointed officials for expressing their judgments or opinions, including those which deal with the perceived inconsistency of non-public discussions, communications or actions with the requirements of State or Federal law or of this ordinance. The release of specific factual information made confidential by State or Federal law including, but not limited to, the privilege for confidential attorney-client communications, may be the basis for a request for injunctive or declaratory relief, of a complaint to the Mayor seeking an accusation of misconduct, or both.

(Added by Ord. 265-93, App. 8/18/93; amended by Proposition G, 11/2/99)

### ARTICLE III: PUBLIC INFORMATION AND PUBLIC RECORDS

- Sec. 67.20. Definitions.
- Sec. 67.21. Process for Gaining Access to Public Records; Administrative Appeals.
- Sec. 67.21-1. Policy Regarding Use and Purchase of Computer Systems.
- Sec. 67.22. Release of Oral Public Information.
- Sec. 67.23. Public Review File Policy Body Communications.
- Sec. 67.24. Public Information that Must Be Disclosed.